Public Document Pack

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Meeting to be held remotely on
Monday, 21st September, 2020
at 10.00 am

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

P Grahame
A Scopes (Chair)
P Truswell
J Illingworth
B Garner

J Bentley

P Harrand
M Harrison
J Taylor

Note to observers of the meeting
To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the link below. This will take you to
Leeds City Council’s You Tube Channel, and the meeting can be viewed from there.
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLggQFjpTLgpLpdtko0DLXkzcthuQAs4Qs

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall

John Grieve 0113
37 88662
Produced on Recycled Paper

1

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

2

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

2

Item
No
3

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

4

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
AND OTHER INTERESTS’
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence (If any)

6

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
To consider and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 27th July 2020.

(Copy attached)
7

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
To consider any matters arising from the minutes.

3

7 - 12

Item
No
8

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT ON PLANNING
DECISION MAKING AND ENFORCEMENT
ARRANGEMENTS

13 38

To consider a report by the Chief Planning Officer
which presents the Annual Assurance report on
planning decision making and enforcement
arrangements. The report seeks to provide
assurance that development management decision
making arrangements and compliance matters are,
up to date, fit for purpose, effectively
communicated and routinely complied with.

(Report attached)

9

ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT ON
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
AND EMPLOYEE CONDUCT.

39 48

To consider a report by the Chief Officer, Human
Resources which presents the Annual Assurance
Report on Employment Policies and Procedures
and Employee Conduct. The report seeks to
provide assurance that: the requirements of
employee conduct are established and regularly
reviewed; requirements relating to employee
conduct are communicated and feedback is
collected on whether expected behaviours are
being demonstrated; and employee conduct is
monitored and reported.

(Report attached)

10

APPLICATIONS PORTFOLIO PROGRAMME UPDATE ON ACCESS PROJECT
To consider a report by the Director of Resources
and Housing which an update on progress with the
Access 2003 replacement project.

(Report attached)

4

49 54

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT JUNE TO
AUGUST 2020

11

55 74

To consider a report by the Chief Officer Financial
Services which provides a summary of the Internal
Audit activity for the period June to August 2020
and highlight the incidence of any significant
control failings or weaknesses.
(Report attached)

WORK PROGRAMME

12

75 78

To receive a report by the City Solicitor which
notifies Members of the Committee’s Work
Programme for 2020/21.

(Copy attached)
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

13

To note that the next meeting will take place on
Friday, 16th October 2020 at 10.00am (Remote
Meeting)

Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the
proceedings either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those
proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the
front of this agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice
a)

b)

Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a
clear identification of the main speakers and their role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between
those points must be complete.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Monday, 27th July, 2020
PRESENT:

Councillor A Scopes in the Chair
Councillors J Bentley, P Harrand,
J Illingworth, P Grahame, J Taylor,
P Truswell and B Garner

15

Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents
There were no appeals against the refusal of inspection of documents

16

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no items identified where it was considered necessary to exclude
the press or public from the meeting due to the confidential nature of the
business to be considered.

17

Late Items
There were no late items of business identified.

18

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests’
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest made at the
meeting.

19

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M Harrison.

20

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 29th June
2020 were accepted as a true and correct record.

21

Matters Arising From the Minutes
Applications Portfolio Programme - Update on Access Project (Minute No.10
referred) – It was confirmed that Members had received updates in relation to
progress on the project and separately in relation to the governance and
escalation processes surrounding the project.

22

Annual Assurance Report on Corporate Risk Management
Arrangements
The Director of Resources and Housing submitted a report which presented
the Annual Assurance Report.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 7

The report sought to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the council’s
corporate risk management arrangements: that they are up to date; fit for
purpose; effectively communicated and routinely complied with. It explains the
key arrangements during 2019/20 and additional work planned for 2020/21.
Members were informed that the Council’s risks arises from a variety of
sources, some of which are outside the Council’s direct control such as the
global coronavirus pandemic and the associated economic downturn. Others
stem from changes in government policy and the shifting needs and make-up
of our communities. In presenting the report the Intelligence and Policy
Manager described the arrangements in place at corporate and directorate
level including arrangements for risk registers, and updating and reporting
arrangements for these. It is acknowledged that managing risk relies on the
council working effectively with partners across the public, private and third
sectors and with the people of Leeds themselves.
Members were advised of the arrangements in place to support officers
undertaking risk management including the replacement of the software in
use, and arrangements for workshops and training which will be provided
remotely.
Referring to the Corporate Risk Register and the consequences of the corona
virus, Members queried the financial future of the Leeds Grand Theatre.
Members were informed that as one of a number of council owned or linked
establishments facing the challenge of reduced income the risk would be
considered within the risk arrangements in specific directorates or by the
establishment itself. Referring to previous consideration by the committee the
Chair commented that it is helpful to know that the specific risks are being
considered in directorates and can be the subject of Scrutiny.
Members asked if there was risk arising from individual officers and Members
being named as accountable for a number of significant corporate risks.
Members were advised that officers and members were supported by a team
of officers in addressing each risk. In addition the Chief Financial Services
Officer confirmed that all of the Corporate Leadership Team shared
accountability although there is a named lead officer in respect of each
corporate risk.
Members asked whether there was any way to quantify the risks on the risk
map and to reduce the numbers of risks.
In responding the Intelligence and Policy Manager described the process for
accepting the risk and to manage and mitigate and so to reduce those risks,
acknowledging the residual elements of those risks.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 8

The Chair noted that the report had been focussed on the risk processes, in
line with the terms of reference of the committee, and that this had been
helpful. He thanked officers for their attendance and contributions.
RESOLVED – That the report on the Council’s Corporate Risk and
Performance Arrangements be received and to note the assurances in
support of the Annual Governance Statement.
23

Compliance with the Governance Requirements Associated with Setting
an Emergency Budget and Issuing a Section 114 Report
At the request of the last meeting of the Committee, the Chief Finance Officer
submitted a report confirming that appropriate procedures are in place for the
agreement of an emergency budget should there be the requirement for one;
and to provide assurance to the Committee that the Council remains a
financial going concern.
Members were reminded of the background of financial challenge facing the
authority and the reported funding gap for 2020/21. The report details the
arrangements for setting an emergency budget or for issuing a section 114
report should that be necessary. Members received assurance that should
action be necessary the Committee would be updated in respect of this in
order to ensure that such action had been taken in accordance with the
processes described, complying with the council’s governance arrangements
and statutory requirements.
The Head of Finance provided explanation of the ‘going concern’ and financial
health of the council. The medium term financial strategy is now over a five
year period with the direction of travel being to achieve financial sustainability.
The report references and appends a letter from the external auditors
confirming that they are supportive of the measures being taken by the
council to bring its finances back into balance.
In offering comment Members welcomed the report and the accompanying
letter from the external auditors, Grant Thornton, noting that it was a clear
assurance document setting out the relevant processes and role of Members
should the need arise.
Referring to the second page of the external auditor’s letter and the reference
to service reviews to help inform the debate around where saving could be
identified and achieved, Members questioned the reference by which it was
determined that the council was an ‘outlier’
In responding the Chief Finance Officer reported that benchmarking exercise
was undertaken last year and that this is helping to inform the Council’s
updated Medium Term Financial Strategy which is to be to Executive Board
in September. The term ‘outlier’ is based on a comparison against our
statistical neighbours and core cities to note areas where the council appears
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 9

to have high cost, or high demand for services and gives a key line of inquiry
to start looking at.
Members asked whether progress had been made in relation to the
assessment of expenditure related to the pandemic.
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the work is ongoing and being
reported to MHCLG and to Executive Board, so that we understand where the
pressures are, the areas that can be mitigated and managed, and those
where the government are being asked for further support.
Members queried if new areas of income generation were being explored.
The Chief Finance Officer said that the Council was always looking at new
areas to generate income, for example receiving funding to undertake track
and trace functions for the government. Members were advised that the
Council’s Civic Enterprise Leeds is a private Trading Company to provide
mechanisms to trade with other Local Authorities and external companies
where opportunities arise.
Gareth Mills representing Grant Thornton said all other Local Authorities were
in a similar position, he suggested the NHS were undertaking similar reviews
and bringing services back in house was being given consideration.
In terms of the corona virus Members queried the mechanism for discussions
were taking place with the government, and whether MPs are involved.
The Chief Finance Officer said a number of meetings had taken place
involving the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG), these included regular meetings between the CFO and MHCLG,
and wider meetings including representatives of Core Cities and MHCLG.
The Chief Finance Officer agreed to check whether the MPs were included in
the discussions.
RESOLVED – To note that there are appropriate procedures and processes
in place should there be a requirement for Full Council to have to agree an
emergency budget in 2020/21.
24

Draft Statement of Accounts 2019/20
The Chief Finance Officer submitted a report which presented the draft
unaudited 2019/20 Statement of Accounts which were currently available on
the Council’s website for public inspection for thirty working days commencing
6th July 2020.
Members were informed that external audit of the accounts was underway
and that it is intended that the final audited accounts will be brought back to
committee for approval in October 2020.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 10

The Chief Finance Officer highlighted that the accounts are produced on a
going concern basis, i.e. on the assumption that the council would continue to
exist and to provide local services for the foreseeable future given the
statutory basis of a local authority. However, a section in the foreword
highlights the scale and uncertainty of the financial challenge going forwards.
Members were informed the draft accounts were prepared in the context of an
uncertain financial outlook arising from the coronavirus pandemic. However
as the balance sheet date of 31st March 2020 fell shortly after the start of
lockdown, there had been limited impact on the figures to be reported for
2019/20. The biggest impact has been in terms of valuation of land and
property assets, with likely material uncertainty, and narrative disclosure
included at relevant points. Before the accounts are finalised in the autumn,
the council’s valuers will be asked whether there is an opportunity for a robust
valuation at that time. If there is a measurable change in the value a post
balance sheet event disclosure would be made in the audited accounts.
Similarly the council will review major bad debt provisions in the accounts
before they are finalised to ensure they are sufficient.
Members asked about the reasons for the increase in the value of long term
debtors and the risks associated.
Members were advised that the increase was almost entirely due to two
finance lease in and out arrangements relating to Headingly Stadium and the
Whitehall TV Studio at Wellington Road. The Council has security for those
leases via other income streams that can be called on. Members requested
that a briefing note be circulated on the arrangements.
In offering comment Members noted the pension’s deficit had increased.
Members were informed that the biggest factor in the net pension liability
increase was the performance of the pension fund’s assets throughout the
year which was less than anticipated at the outset of the year. Gross liabilities
have reduced, partly due to changes in mortality assumptions. It was noted
that the government’s proposed remedy for the McLeod Judgment had been
published since the draft accounts were issued, and that this would need to
be reviewed for consistency with the assumptions made by the pension fund’s
actuaries.
RESOLVED – To note the 2019/20 unaudited Statement of Accounts as
certified by the Responsible Financial Officer.
25

Interim Annual Governance Statement
The Chief Officer Financial Services submitted a report which presented the
interim Annual Governance Statement (AGS), prepared in accordance with
the Account and Audit Regulations 2015/234 (the Regulations).

The interim AGS had been prepared in accordance with proper practices
specified by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. Following a review of
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 11

the arrangements which together comprise our system of internal control, the
AGS supports the opinion that, overall, key systems are operating soundly,
and that there are no fundamental control weaknesses.
The AGS was published in draft on 6th July 2020 to accompany the Statement
of Accounts when put on deposit.
Members were informed that the Interim Statement may be updated before
final publication to reflect any significant variation in our arrangements, or in
the opinion of internal audit or the external auditors. The final AGS would be
returned to this Committee for approval prior to publication.
Members asked for rational for approval of the AGS by Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee.
Members were advised that as a Council function the AGS could not be
approved by Executive board, and that delegation to the Committee enabled a
more robust examination of the statement. Gareth Mills of Grant Thornton
confirmed that the grouping of the AGS alongside the accounts for approval
by the audit committee reflected the arrangements in other local authorities.
RESOLVED – That the interim Annual Governance Statement be received,
noting that the final document would be brought back to the Committee in
October for final approval.

26

Work Programme
The City Solicitor submitted a report which set out the ongoing Work Programme
for 2020/21.
RESOLVED – To note the draft work programme and approve the suggested
meeting dates as set out in Appendix 1 of the submitted report.

27

Date and Time of Next Meeting
To note that the next meeting will take place on Monday, 21st September 2020
at 10.00am (Remote Meeting)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Monday, 21st September, 2020

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Helen Cerroti
Tel: 0113 3788039
Report of Chief Planning Officer
Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 21st September 2020
Subject: Annual Assurance Report on Planning Decision Making and Enforcement Arrangements
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues





An annual assurance report, providing assurances in relation to planning decision
making and enforcement arrangements is required by the Corporate Governance and
Audit Committee.
Using the cycle of internal control framework, Members will be provided with
assurance to the adequacy of policies and practices, measures in place to ensure that
the framework is clearly communicated, embedded and monitored with appropriate
escalation processes in place and is reviewed and refined to ensure continuous
improvement and assurance.
A service review as part of the Council budgetary process in July 2020, looking at
efficiency savings highlighted that policies and procedures are not always consistently
applied for both officer and Plans Panel decision making. Reviewing these areas will be
a key action for the service going forward in 2020-21. Any changes will be subject to
the cycle of internal control framework ensuring that policies and practices align with
any constraints imposed as a result of the financial pressures, whilst maintaining
assurance in the decision making process.

2. Best Council Plan Implications (click here for the latest version of the Best Council Plan)

Page 13



The Council’s decision making framework sets out systems and processes which ensure
information is shared in a clear and consistent fashion. The decision making framework
seeks to ensure that Leeds City Council is open, honest and trusted.

3. Resource Implications


There are no resource implications arising from this report; all systems and processes
which are in place to meet the requirements of the decision making framework do so
from within existing resources.

Recommendations
Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in this report
and future steps to provide additional assurance in the process.
1.

Purpose of this report
1.1. This is a cover report to the main development management and compliance assurance
annual report for 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020 which is attached.

2. Background information
2.1. An annual assurance report is requested by the Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee on an annual basis which provides assurances in relation to planning decision
making and enforcement arrangements.
3. Main issues
3.1. The Chief Planning Officer has responsibility to ensure that the Council’s arrangements for
dealing with and determining planning and compliance matters are up to date, fit for
purpose, effectively communicated, routinely complied with and monitored and has
internal arrangements in place to provide assurance in the decision making process and to
mitigate any potential risk of challenge on the grounds of partiality or bias.
3.2. Attached as appendix 1 is the annual assurance report for development management and
compliance functions of the Council. The report outlines the key internal controls and
processes in place to mitigate risks and to provide assurance that systems and processes
for decision making on planning decision and enforcement activity are in place.
3.3. This year the report follows a different structure, with the focus on the assurances
provided and how they address this Committee’s terms of reference. Members will be
guided through the report using the cycle of internal control framework, which will
provide the assurance to the adequacy of policies and practices, measures to ensure that
the framework is clearly communicated, embedded and monitored with appropriate
escalation processes in place and is reviewed and refined to ensure continuous
improvement and assurance. This framework ensures compliance with statutory and
other guidance.
3.4. A service review as part of the Council budgetary process in July 2020 highlighted that
policies and procedures are not always consistently applied for both officer and Plans
Panel decision making. The variances operate within the constraints of the statutory
Page 14

and regulatory framework and relate to impacting on efficiency rather than governance.
As such they pose little or no risk to the Council, but it is considered appropriate to
consider these and take remedial action as appropriate. The review of these areas will be
a key action for the service going forward into 2020-21.
3.5. Additionally a thorough review has been undertaken of the policies and documentation
which underpin the statutory development management decision making process. This
has highlighted that whilst most documents are up to date and fit for purpose, there are
some instances where documents have not been reviewed for some years and need
reviewing to ensure they remain up to date and relevant.
4. Corporate considerations
4.1. Consultation and engagement
4.1.1. This information is presented for information and comment
4.2. Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration
4.2.1. There are no specific issues arising from this report
4.3. Council policies and the Best Council Plan
4.3.1. The Council’s values include being open, honest and trusted; spending money
wisely; and working with all communities. The Planning Service adopts systems and
processes which ensure information is shared in a clear and consistent fashion, to
enable the people living and working in the communities of Leeds are engaged in
development proposals. The protocols, systems and processes themselves are
subject to continuous review to ensure that their implementation is practicable and
makes best use of the Council’s resources to achieve compliance with both the
statutory and local planning framework.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2. There are no specific issues arising from this report
4.4. Resources, procurement and value for money
4.4.1. The systems and processes in place to meet the requirements of the decision
making framework do so from within existing resources. Given the assurances made
by the Chief Planning Officer it is considered that the systems and processes in place
continue to represent an appropriate use of resources and good value for money.
The service review conducted in July 2020 has highlighted a number of areas where
there is inconsistent application of policies and procedures leading to inefficiencies,
which will be subject to a review in 2020-21.
4.5. Legal implications, access to information, and call-in
4.5.1. There are no legal implications arising from the report. The Council’s framework for
planning meets the statutory requirements in relation to decision making, and regular
monitoring and update of protocols and processes ensures continued compliance.
There are no implications for access to information; all of the procedures and
protocols are already or can be available for public inspection.
4.6. Risk management
4.6.1. The positive assurances set out in this report show that the development
management and compliance decision making processes are fit for purpose,
Page 15

embedded and routinely complied with and so there are no risks identified by this
report.
5. Conclusions
5.1. This report sets out the evidence to confirm that development management decision
making arrangements and compliance matters are up to date, fit for purpose, effectively
communicated and routinely complied with. However, the report also highlights areas for
some refinement and review of processes and procedures. Although low risk as they
remain statutorily compliant, in their enhancement would enable a high level of
assurance to be maintained going forward.
6. Recommendations
6.1. Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in this
report and future steps to provide additional assurance in the process.
7. Background documents1

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 16

Planning policy and procedures
The framework for decision making in relation to planning matters in England and Wales is plan-led and is legislated by a
number of Acts and Statutory Instruments. This involves the authority preparing plans that set out what can be built and
where. All decisions on applications for planning permission should be made in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Leeds adopted Local Plan sets out the council's vision and
strategy for planning the area until 2028. Planning Policy is compliant with all relevant legislation. Development management activity is
guided by legislation, the main legislation being The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015
which sets the legal framework for determining planning applications. Described below is the planning policy hierarchy and the underpinning
development management procedures and guidance used to determine planning applications in Leeds.

Page 17

In terms of planning enforcement, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and
how these should be applied; it is also the framework for decision making in relation to enforcement matters.
In considering any enforcement action, the local planning authority should have regard to the NPPF, in particular paragraph 58. Paragraph 58
states “Effective enforcement is important to maintain public confidence in the planning system. Enforcement action is discretionary, and local
planning authorities should act proportionately in responding to suspected breaches of planning control. They should consider publishing a
local enforcement plan to manage enforcement proactively, in a way that is appropriate to their area. This should set out how they will
monitor the implementation of planning permissions, investigate alleged cases of unauthorised development and take action where
appropriate.”

Roles and responsibilities
Delegated decision making
Page 18

The Chief Planning Officer is authorised to carry out specific functions on behalf of the council. The Chief Planning Officer’s (CPO) delegation
scheme was last approved by Full Council on 22 May 2019. A decision taken by the Monitoring Officer in May 2020 confirmed that, as the
Annual Meeting of Council would not take place under social distancing requirements as a result of Covid-19, existing arrangements for
delegation of council functions would be carried forward into the 2020-21 municipal year.
Following recommendations from this Committee in November 2019, the CPO delegation scheme was thoroughly reviewed by the service and
Legal Services in consultation with the Executive Member and the three Plans Panel Chairs in May 2020. This review concluded that the CPO
delegation scheme remained up to date, robust and fit for purpose and recommended to members that no changes were required at this
stage. Members accepted this recommendation on 2 June 2020. This followed confirmation of the Leader’s Executive arrangements on 27th
May 2020.
The sub-delegation scheme sets out which functions have been sub-delegated by the Chief Planning Officer to other officers and any terms
and conditions attached to the authority sub-delegated by the Chief Planning Officer.
The Chief Planning Officer’s sub-delegation scheme ensures that decision making is undertaken at the appropriate level of seniority and
experience. For example, only officers at planning team leader level and above have the authority to determine major applications. Other
applications can only be signed off by officers at PO4 level and above. No officer can ‘sign off’ their own applications and therefore an

appropriate level of external scrutiny is brought to bear on each proposal before it is finally determined. Due to the scale of the planning
authority and in line with best practice the majority of decisions are made by officers under the delegation scheme and in 2019-20, officers
made 98.2% of the decisions.
The Chief Planning Officer is authorised to determine all planning enforcement matters in accordance with the Officer Delegation scheme and
has sub-delegated this authority to appropriate officers as described above.
The service has in place a conflicts of interest register whereby if an officer is allocated an application or enforcement case but has an interest,
or is known to the applicant, or their representative or complainant or property owner being complained about, then officers are required to
declare an interest and the application is reallocated to another officer in the interests of transparency. Continuous monitoring takes place
and there have been no reports of conflicts of interest made in 2019-20 or in the first quarter of 2020.
Plans Panel decision making
Page 19

All planning applications are delegated to the Chief Planning Officer under the officer delegation scheme, unless they fall into defined
categories of exceptions which were detailed in a previous report in November 2019 to this Committee.
Such exceptions facilitate Members’ right to request that an application comes to the Plans Panel for determination, and part 1a of the Officer
Delegation Scheme (Council (non-executive) Functions) - Chief Planning Officer, ‘Exceptions’ section sets out the circumstances when this is
applicable.
Following recommendations from this committee in November 2019 about the member referral to Plans Panel process, a flowchart was
prepared and circulated to all members in March 2020 which clearly described the process along with information on material planning
considerations.
Compliance matters
The service has a duty to investigate all enforcement matters it receives. Enforcement matters are allocated to case officers within the service
who conduct site visits, investigative and carry out meetings as appropriate. Officers then make recommendations as to the course of action
to pursue; this recommendation will have due regard to the NPPF and NPPG mentioned above and the Council’s Enforcement Plan. As
encouraged by the guidance, enforcement activity will almost always seek to resolve issues first by negotiation and by working with
developers/ owners to address any problems. On a small number of cases, a breach may be identified and a decision taken that it is not

expedient to pursue further. These decisions would only generally be made when the breach is very minor and causes no identified planning
harm in accordance with relevant guidance. Where no further action is recommended due to a lack of expediency, the case will fully be
appraised and documented for approval by a senior officer. The CPO’s sub-delegation scheme ensures that decision making is undertaken at
the appropriate level of seniority and experience. No Officer can decide their own cases and therefore, an appropriate level of external
scrutiny is brought to bear on each case before it is finally determined.
In November 2019, Members of this committee requested that a more comprehensive record was maintained and processes put in place for
compliance activity on council owned land. Since January 2020, the service has put in place a system to record this information; details of the
cases received with notes as to where they have been referred once the owning department is known, with agreement that the owning
department should resolve the issues, as the landowner. There are proportionate escalation processes in place in the event of the owning
department not taking appropriate action.

Page 20

Democratic Oversight
There exists several opportunities for democratic oversite of the development management and compliance processes:
Executive Member
and Plans Panel
Chairs meeting

Informal briefings on matters relating to specific applications, process issues and strategic planning and compliance
matters and provides an effective two way communication mechanism between members and the service. Held
monthly, and have continued throughout the lockdown period, thus providing the continuous democratic oversight
during a challenging and ever evolving situation.

Plans panels

Formally appointed committees to determine planning applications in accordance with terms of reference.
Arrangements enable individual members to refer planning applications to panel.

Joint Meeting of
Plans Panel

An informal meeting of members of the three formally appointed Plans Panels and Development Plan Panel.
Half yearly performance reports describing the work and performance of the development management and
compliance service; other reports are also brought to this meeting detailing arising issues or latest developments and
legislative changes. This ensures that members are kept as up to date as possible with events and activities which

may have an impact on decision making. Two meetings held in 2019-20. The meeting scheduled for June 2020 was
postponed due to the lockdown.

Page 21

Full Council

Report of the Plans Panel and the Development Plan Panel is prepared for full Council each year detailing the work
and activities of the Panels. The last report went to full Council on 13 November 2019. In response to members’
requests, the 2020 annual report will aim to look ahead in terms of new developments coming forward where known,
as well as a review of the previous year.

Development Plan
Panel

Advisory Committee, which makes recommendations to both the Executive and Council regarding the Authority's
Unitary Development Plan and the Local Development Framework.

Corporate
Governance and
Audit Committee

Oversight of system of internal control in relation to development control and enforcement. Robust reporting
arrangements have been put in place to monitor and measure the number of type of member referrals to Panel,
details of which will be regularly shared with the Plans Panel Chairs for monitoring purposes. Arrangements have
been put in place to more robustly record compliance activity on Council owned land.

Scrutiny Board
(Infrastructure,
Investment &
Inclusive Growth)

Focusing on development and infrastructure functions and services to monitor progress in relation to transport and
planning, regeneration and housing growth

Compliance Ward
Member meetings

Key cases list with updates on priority cases within each area

Compliance Town
and Parish Council
engagement

Key cases list with updates on priority cases within each area

Joint Officer
Member Working
Group

An informal cross party consultative and advisory group working with the service on new protocols, guidance and
service improvement activities relating to development management and compliance. Terms of reference refreshed
in October 2018.

Clearly Communicate
The service places emphasis on ensuring that planning officers and Plans Panel members are up to date with current
legislation, best practice and Government’s planning reform agenda. This ensures the decision making process is based on
the most current and accurate information possible and is embedded thus:

Officers
Training

Members

Page 22

Season ticket to RTPI (Royal Town Planners Institute)
training sessions

Article 8.2.2 of the Council’s Constitution, says that Members of the Plans
Panels must complete all compulsory training.

Officers attendance at member training sessions

All Plans Panel members and substitute Plans Panel members in 2019-20
have undertaken the prescribed training.

Internal training and update sessions from internal
specialist consultees e.g. on biodiversity, landscape.

A programme of member training produced for 2019-20. Sessions were
open to Plans Panel and non-plans panel members alike, and included



Trees and the planning process, and
Access and Inclusion in planning

Further sessions are planned virtually or post lockdown.
Planning materials for members who aren’t Plans Panel members is
available on the Planning Member development SharePoint site and is
accessible for all Members.
Leadership Planning Services Team Leaders Meeting: Head of
Development chairs a monthly meeting of managers and
team leaders discuss current or new issues, and agree
actions. Ensures common understanding agreement of
consistent approach across teams.

The Executive member and Plans panel Chairs were consulted in preparing
the programme of member training to ensure that topics covered were
relevant and meaningful for members.

Case officer meetings: the Head of Development
Management provides an update of government reforms
and changes that will impact on the way officers work.
Guest speakers provide information on planning and
planning related information including those from the
Policy team to ensure officers are kept up to date with
regard to new, emerging or amended planning policy,
including the latest position on the Site Allocations Plan
and Core Strategy Review.
Team Meetings: Team Leaders hold regular meetings with
staff to disseminate information and identify team related
issues or queries to feed back to senior managers
Page 23

Guidance

Learning materials from the sessions on the service
SharePoint site which is accessible to all staff in the
service areas.
Learning objectives are set and monitored as part of the
Personal Development Review process

The learning materials arising from the sessions are available to members
on a dedicated Planning member development SharePoint site, which also
contains planning guidance, FAQs and supporting information for members
in the area of Planning.

Assurance that planning decision making processes are effectively embedded throughout the work and relationship with
partners and customers is demonstrated through the following four case studies:

Challenges

Clear systems and process in place

Stakeholder
engagement

Outcomes

Householder
Agents
Conference

Increasing workloads with the
same level of staffing resource
and a high level of resource
input on smaller applications

Process for handling household
applications has been developed to take a
more efficient transactional approach,
whilst maintaining consultation processes
and still working positively and proactively
as legally expected in the NPPF.

This was an efficient and proactive
approach with the agents which
provided excellent two way
communication which the service
hopes to maintain in the form of an
annual conference.
Since the implementation of the
changes there has been one informal
complaint, which was resolved swiftly
and positively.

Handling public
comments on
planning
applications

A legal requirement of the
planning process is citizen
participation in the form of
allowing comments on new
proposals, which the planning
case officer then has regard to
in making their
recommendation. Since the

There is no legal requirement to publish
the comments, but in the interests of
transparency in the planning process,
public comments are currently displayed.
Processes already exist to automatically
redact signatures, email addresses and so
on, but there is still a risk of disclosure of
information if citizens put personal

In order to cascade the
changes, a Householder
Agents meeting was
held in February 2020
which was attended by
around 50 agents
operating in the city. At
the meeting the new
processes were
described as well as
providing an
opportunity for
feedback, which the
service subsequently
took on board.
The Executive Member,
Plans Panel members
and Town and Parish
Councils have been
engaged in work to
identify a solution.

Page 24

Case study

This work, which will mitigate the
chance of challenge, whilst proving an
open and transparent planning
process, is ongoing.

Page 25

GDPR was enacted, the service
has been working to find way
to mitigate the risk of a breach
of the regulations, in the event
of the local planning authority
accidentally publishing
personal details in the website
via the Public Access system.

information in the body of their comment.
Processes are being developed to
safeguard against this eventuality which
are due to be implemented imminently.

Case study

Challenges

Clear systems and process in place

Stakeholder
engagement

Outcomes

Engagement
with major
developer
stakeholders

The high workload and
ambitious inclusive growth
agenda for the city often
results a challenging working
environment. The work with
stakeholder groups is essential
in listening and understanding
the needs of customers, and
conversely for the
development industry to
understand the Council’s
positon and priorities in the
context of the Council’s
ambitions.

The engagement takes place regularly
three times a year and the Forum has
clear terms of reference which were
revisited in 2019. A virtual meeting has
taken place during lockdown in July 2020.

The service regularly
engages with the Leeds
Planning and
Developers Forum, a
service led forum with
an independent Chair.
This is a forum for the
open discussion of local
and national planning
matters and provides an
opportunity for open
and honest two way
communication
between the service
and developers of large
scale developments on
the city, including the
volume housebuilders.

Members of the Forum have taken
part in service reviews including a
recent one on the review of the
service as part of the budget
challenge. Their input as stakeholders
investing in the city provides a very
valuable customer insight. Sometimes
challenging, it nevertheless provides a
critical friend role to the service.

Challenges

Clear systems and process in place

Stakeholder
engagement

Outcomes

Consultation on
pre application
fee increases

As part of the Council’s
2019/20 budget review it was
agreed to increase pre
application enquiry fees to
reflect the true costs of
providing the service. This
resulted in the proposed fees
increasing significantly, which
may be a barrier to take up.
Pre application fees is a
valuable income stream for the
service as budget and
resourcing become more
challenging.

A consultation strategy was developed
which ensured a range of recent users of
the planning service in Leeds were
engaged with to seek their views on the
proposed fees and the level of service
provided.

Developers,
householder agents,
Chamber of Commerce
and key service areas
within the Council,
including Housing
Growth were included
in the consultation to
ensure coverage of both
large scale and small
scale developers.

Shared understanding of the reasons
for the increase in fees and greater
understanding for the service of some
of the challenges developers face at
the pre application stage. Overall
outcome was the pre application fees
were increased, however this was put
on hold due to COVID-19, but fees
have now been increased from 1st
August 2020.

Page 26

Case study

There are a number of ways the service can demonstrate that there is meaningful and robust monitoring taking place and
this exists on several levels; it is a statutory requirement to collect and publish performance information as well as
monitoring and evaluation which takes place at a local service level. Benchmarking takes place to ensure there is a
perspective about how well the service performs compared to other peer authorities which helps to identify performance
gaps and areas for improvement. The monitoring framework is described below:
Activity

Process

Oversight

Escalation

Risks & Resolution

Statutory reporting

Planning decisions are subject to
Government scrutiny

Review of reporting shows that
significant assurances can be
provided to the quality and speed
of decision making in Leeds as
performance far exceeds the

Senior Management
review

Where an authority is designated as
underperforming, applicants have
the option of submitting their
applications directly to the Planning
Inspectorate for determination. This

Activity

Process

Oversight

Quarterly returns of PS1 and PS2 statistics
dealing with volume of workload and
decision timescales.

national thresholds for this
reporting period

Government’s approach to measuring the
performance of authorities introduced by
the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013
Assesses local planning authorities’
performance on the speed and quality of
their decisions on applications.

As a result of going through this
report process, it has been
highlighted that there needs to be a
more robust oversight process for
the statutory returns

Escalation

Risks & Resolution

Senior Management
review

risks application not being dealt with
locally, potentially bypassing local
democratic processes, reducing
application income and causing
significant reputational damage
Risk that returns are incorrect and
this data is used for designation of
authorities to ascertain if they are
poorly performing or not. Resolved
by better oversight processes to be
developed.

Performance thresholds are set on a rolling
timescale.

Page 27

The Government publishes this data as well
as quarterly performance data on the
gov.uk website1
Government
Monitoring

Government assessment of appeals
performance

Performance on appeals is
currently well above national
average

Senior Management
review

Where an authority is designated as
underperforming, applicants have
the option of submitting their
applications directly to the Planning
Inspectorate for determination. This
risks application not being dealt with
locally, potentially bypassing local
democratic processes, reducing
application income and causing
significant reputational damage.
Planning appeals and quality of
decision making, where performance
drops below the expected level, the

1

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-statistics

Activity

Process

Oversight

Escalation

Risks & Resolution
service will examine appeal decisions
and take corrective action, or attach
different weight, as appropriate
where a change of stance is perhaps
required in light of recurring upheld
appeals.

Service reporting

The service collects a range of information
and data to monitor its own performance
and to take corrective action wherever
necessary.

Page 28

This enables identification of high risk areas
where corrective action can be taken as
appropriate, for example examining speed
of decision making where there has been a
downturn in performance.
No statutory targets for enforcement
decision making, however the quality of
decision making can be seen in the same
way as the quality of planning decision
making by the consideration of
enforcement appeals which are
subsequently upheld at appeal

Continuous monitoring in service of
individual officer caseloads as well
as overall service performance
allows for swift resolution of issues
early on and use of escalation
processes as appropriate.

October to December 2020 the performance is 80%;

Areas for improvement identified
through trends of complaints are
shared with the planning team to
reduce the risk of reoccurrence n
similar subjects

In service escalation
to identify
appropriate
corrective action

As above.

Customer complaints information is
recorded and a quarterly report is
presented to the Leadership Team.
Performance data is reported on a
quarterly basis to the Senior
Management Team for review and
to identify tends or issues. On the
basis of the latest data available2 it
is noted that LCC compares very
favourably with the appeal rate of
the Core Cities.
Political oversight is provided
through twice yearly reports on

2

Senior manager
review

Activity

Process

Oversight

Escalation

Risks & Resolution

Head of
Development
Management to take
corrective action as
appropriate

It is important for Leeds’
performance to be comparable to
peer authorities, e.g. Core Cites.
When performance is significantly
different an investigation into the
issues can be initiated

performance to the Joint Plans
Panels.
Benchmarking

Core Cities benchmarking to ensure that
performance is comparable with similar
authorities which helps to highlight any
service anomalies or emerging trends; this
assists the service to highlight risks and take
action as appropriate.

Core Cities benchmarking of speed
of determination of planning
applications and quality of decision
making is published by the
Government on their interactive
dashboard3.

Page 29

Latest data for the period ending
December 2019 shows that
significant assurance can be
provided that Leeds performance
sits in the upper quartile for both
quality of decision making and
speed of decision making.

The information above sets out details of the systems, processes and control in place within the planning service to ensure
that statutory requirements are met and to ensure there is high quality consistent decision making in Leeds. These
processes and internal controls also exist to ensure that there is a proportionate approach, deploying resources at the
correct level in the interest of efficiency and value for money as well as being responsive to service, legislative, budget and
other challenges.

3

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiZjkwMGUyZDctMmZlZS00ZmE2LWFkMTEtN2E4ZDc2Zjc3YjhkIiwidCI6ImJmMzQ2ODEwLTljN2QtNDNkZS1hODcyLTI0YTJlZjM5OTVh
OCJ9

A suite of documentations exists to embed and communicate those systems and processes; as part of the service responsiveness to change,
these documents are subject a programme for systematic review to ensure that they remain an accurate reflection of arrangements and are
up to date and fit for purpose.
Document

Purpose

Monitored

Officer
Sets out authority for Chief Planning
Delegation
Officer to discharge council functions
Scheme (Council
Functions)

Page 30

Officer
Delegation
Scheme
(Executive
Functions)

Sets out authority for Chief Planning
Officer to discharge executive functions

Chief Planning
Officer subdelegation
scheme

Sets out authority for officers of
suitable experience and seniority to
discharge council and executive
functions. The CPO has sub-delegated
some or all of those functions to
officers of suitable experience and
seniority.

Plans Panel
terms of
reference

Sets out authority and remit for Area
Plans Panels, the City Plans Panel
and Development Plans Panels

Plans Panel decisions
are made in
accordance with the
terms of reference of
each Panel.

Review date

Review

Accountability and
oversight

2 June 2020

Reviewed by service
in consultation with
the Executive
Member and Plans
Panel Chairs

Full Council

Reviewed annually
with executive
arrangements.

Leader of Council

The latest
subdelegation
scheme was
approved on
18 March
2020.

Refreshed annually
following renewal of
delegations at annual
council meeting.

Chief Planning Officer

Annual

As part of the Annual
Meeting of Council

Full Council

Page 31

Document

Purpose

Monitored

Review date

Review

Accountability and
oversight

Local Plan

Sets out a vision and a framework for
the future development of an area,
addressing needs and opportunities in
relation to housing, the economy,
community facilities and infrastructure.
Guides decisions about individual
development proposals.

The Local Plan is kept
up to date by reviewing
the policies within it to
see if they need to be
updated.

A review of
existing
policies is
undertaken
every 5 years
for each
document.

New statutory
requirement, first
formal review will be
made available early
2020

Development Plans
Panel, full Council

The Authority Monitoring Report
monitors the implementation of
planning policies in terms of planning
decisions

Annually and reported
to Council and
Government

Site Allocations Plan identifies sites for
housing, employment, retail and
greenspace to ensure that enough land
is available in appropriate locations to
meet the growth targets set out in
the Core Strategy.

A legal challenge was
made to the High Court
and judgement was
handed down in June
2020, allowing the
claim on 3 grounds. All
interested parties were
invited to propose
remedies in light of the
judgement.

Statutory requirement
to publish annually

The Judge is
currently
considering
these and a
judgement on
relief is
awaited. The
service will
respond to
the outcome.

Timescale to be
determined

Document

Purpose

Monitored

Review date

Planning Code
of Good
Practice, part
5(g) of the
Constitution

Primarily aimed at Plans Panel Members
and the emphasis of it is to provide
practical supportive advice to Members
when dealing with planning matters,
keeping decisions safe and mitigating
the risk of possible challenge.

There have been no
reported complaints or
issues in relation to the
operation of the Code
in this reporting
period.

Last reviewed
and amended
May 2018

Review

Accountability and
oversight
The Chief Planning
Officer is authorised to
approve the Code in
consultation with the
Joint meeting of Plans
Panels.
The Executive Member
and Plans Panel Chairs
will also be consulted.

Page 32

Public speaking
protocol, part
5(h) of the
Council’s
Constitution

Protocol provides the framework for
allowing opportunities for public
speaking on applications at the Panel
meetings and at the pre application and
position statement stages

Continuous monitoring July 2019
to ensure compliance
with the protocol and
where Chair’s
discretion is used, this
information is recorded

Amendments
Promoted use of Plain
English;
Made changes in
relation to the order in
which supporters and
objectors speak;
Provided common
terminology for those in
favour of applications
and those against in the
interest of
transparency; and
Glossary of terms was
included to assist in the
comprehension of
commonly used terms

The Chief Planning
Officer is authorised to
amend the Protocol in
consultation with the
Joint meeting of the
Plans Panels

Document

Purpose

Monitored

Review date

Review

Accountability and
oversight

and phrases at plans
panel meetings

Page 33

Pre application
presentation
guide

This document guides the principles for
pre applications presentations to the
Plans Panel meetings

Continuous monitoring July 2019
to ensure compliance
with the protocol and
where Chair’s
discretion is used, this
information is recorded

Reviewed for currency
and readability and a
number of changes
were made in the
interests of Plain
English.

Executive member and
Plans Panel Chairs

Member Officer
Communication
Protocol

Document describing the consistent
approaches to officer- member
communication about planning
applications

Possible changes now
required in light of
technological
developments

2020

Key action to review

Executive member and
Plans Panel Chairs

Leeds
Enforcement
Plan

The plan outlines the key considerations
for the planning enforcement service in
Leeds and sets out the main procedures
and principles the service will adopt to
regulate development and its priorities
for investigation.

Continuous monitoring
to ensure compliance,
performance
information reported
twice yearly

Spring 2021

COVID 19 response

Joint meeting of the
Plans Panels

Joint meeting of the
Plans Panels
Terms of reference
relate to Government
guidance, corporate
priorities and the
statutory development
plan

Executive member and
Plans Panel Chairs
Joint Meeting of the
Plans Panels

The planning response to the COVID 19 pandemic has been at a national level through the changes in the Business and Planning Act and locally
through reviewing and refining local policies and procedures to enable the efficient determination of planning applications to continue, safely.
The service has put in place a working practices procedure which outlines the changes required by officers in the determination of applications
or enforcement investigations which allows them to work safely, whilst still operating within an environment of procedural controls ensuring
statutory requirements are met and there is high quality, robust and consistent decision making in Leeds.
Control measures

Remote Plans Panel
meetings

Transparent and effective decision making, consistent with the Council’s constitution and legal requirements is
maintained through:
 Training for Members in using the technology for remote access meetings, with additional training for
Panel Chairs as appropriate
 Panel Chairs clearly stating at the commencement of each meeting the approach and protocol for the
meeting.
 Ability to access remotely presentations in relation to agenda items to enable participants to hear and
see the presentation material.
 Continuation of public speaking rights to maintain third party involvement in the Plans Panel process
 Members will have access to photographs from case officer site visits and google maps to enable a
virtual site tour as well as scheme images to assess the proposed development in context

Page 34

Purpose

Virtual Plans Panel
member site visits
Officer Site visits





Applicants, and owners in respect of enforcement cases, are to be encouraged to submit a limited
number of clear photographs of the site together with a plan showing the camera angles. It is not a legal
requirement to visit every site, provided that an appropriately informed assessment can be carried using
material such as photographs, Google maps etc.
Record made on the planning case file on the Uniform database system of the nature of the site visit
undertaken, e.g. from a public vantage point or from within the boundary of the property

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Note of Working Group
Monday 7th September 2020

Annual Assurance Report on Planning Decision Making and
Enforcement Arrangements
The Head of Development Management presented the report of the Chief Planning
Officer. The report sets out key internal controls and processes in place to mitigate
risks in relation to planning control and enforcement.
In relation to planning compliance the Committee were advised that guidance places
emphasis on informal resolution, with formal enforcement action being a last resort.
The Committee were informed that the case studies set out within the report showed
details of the way in which relevant controls were embedded. They also
demonstrate that were those controls are changed consultation takes place.
The Committee received assurance that monitoring has indicated that the council is
performing in the upper quartile when benchmarked against its peers.

Members of the Committee asked questions and received responses as follows:
Q: In relation to public comments on planning applications, what process has been
put in place to mitigate the risk of breach of GDPR.
A:.In place of the previous system which enabled the public to comment directly in
the online record, comments are now reviewed by officers and redacted to remove
personal data or malicious comments. Guidance on appropriate content is provided
to those wishing to make comments, and redaction takes place in accordance with a
protocol for officers and comments are published within five working days. The
protocol was subject to legal and information governance advice to ensure that it is
GDPR compliant.
Q: In relation to Paragraph 3.4 what is meant by the phrase “not always consistently
applied”?
A: The planning service review has identified inconsistencies in the application of the
officer delegation scheme with a number of matters being referred to Plans Panel
despite not meeting the defined criteria that necessitate a referral. This has cost
implications as the cost of taking a decision through a panel meeting is considerably
higher than it would be for an officer decision.
Q: With reference to the Householder Agents Conference what is meant by the
phrase “efficient transactional approach”
A: For high volume case work processes have been implemented to ensure that
applications are dealt with efficiently and cost-effectively. For example applications
which are clearly unacceptable on planning grounds will be refused on first
application rather than being subject to protracted revisions which will not

Page 35

necessarily make the application acceptable and would be better dealt with via a
new application . This will enable those decisions to be dealt with at cost.
Q: With reference to the pre-application fee; how often is pre-application advice
sought? At what stage is it required? Is it essential or desirable?
A: Pre-application advice is a discretionary service and can therefore be the subject
of charging. The Council’s fee scale has historically been low in comparison to peer
authorities. Following benchmarking new fees were proposed and consultation
indicated that developers were happy to pay those fees in light of the good service
provided.
Q: What changes are coming into place in relation to the Member officer
communication protocol?
A: The planning SharePoint site is being developed to enable Members to find
information directly and therefore more quickly, with less reliance of officers to
provide the information
Q: Members noted that although the scheme of delegation is clear, it is important to
have an equally defined scheme of escalation in place. Particularly Members asked
what escalation is in place in relation to planning compliance and enforcement on
Council owned land?
A: In accordance with the discussion and recommendations on this matter when the
previous annual report was presented, a process has been put in place where
breaches of control on council owned land are recorded and referred to the relevant
department. There are currently limited formally defined avenues to escalate.
The Chair of Committee invited the Chief Planning Officer to draft a protocol for
enforcement of breaches of planning control on Council land which does not rely on
formal enforcement action and which should be adopted by the whole council and
undertook to write to the Chief Executive to seek support in ensuring that
departments complied with the new protocol once agreed.
Q: Members referenced a recent application and asked is it possible to change
drawings after plans panel has met and consultation closed but prior to approval of
an application where approval has been delegated by plans panel to officers?
A: The Head of Development Management advised that any new plans presented
post panel would not be expected to be materially different, however he undertook to
investigate the particular application and to confirm whether the issue was isolated.
Q: What is the process by which Members and the public can query changes in
applications once Panel has considered an application?
A: The Head of Development Management undertook to provide clarity regarding the
circumstances under which plans can be changed.
Q: Is there a clear and published process to determine whether the public are able to
speak in Plans Panel?

Page 36

A: The Protocol for Public Speaking at Plans Panel is included in the Council’s
Constitution which is a public document. The Protocol is approved by the Chief
Planning Officer in consultation with a joint meeting of the Plans Panels.
The Chair undertook to write to the Chief Planning Officer requesting details of the
process for reviewing the protocol including consultation with appropriate Members,
and requesting further consideration of Member speaking rights.
It is recommended by the working group that
1. The Committee approves the recommendations set out in the report.
2. The Committee supports the Chair of Committee in writing to the Chief
Planning Officer to
 Invite him to draft a protocol for enforcement of breaches of planning
control on Council land which does not rely on formal enforcement action
and which should be adopted by the whole council and undertook to write
to the Chief Executive to seek support in ensuring that departments
complied with the new protocol once agreed; and
 To request that the Protocol on Public Speaking at Plans Panel be
reviewed with particular regard to members’ rights to speak at Plans
Panel, and that the Chief Planning Officer confirm the process for doing so
and that the Plans Panel chairs are engaged in the review;

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Report author: Helen Fallows
Tel: 271 222

Report of : Chief Officer Human Resources
Report to : Corporate Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 21st September 2020
Subject: Annual assurance report on employment policies and procedures and employee
conduct.
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues
This is the annual report to the committee concerning the Council’s employment
policies and employee conduct. From the review, assessment and on-going
monitoring carried out, the Chief Officer HR has reached the opinion that, employee
conduct is properly managed, policies are regularly reviewed and employee
conduct forms part of normal manager/ employee relations.

2. Best Council Plan Implications (see the latest version of the Best Council Plan)
The Best Council Plan and the Best Council Ambition to be an efficient, enterprising
and healthy organisation can only be achieved through the linked ambition to be the
Best Place to Work which will be delivered by our People Strategy 2020- 2025.

3. Resource Implications
There are no additional resource implications arising from this report.

Page 39

Recommendations
Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in
this report in relation to: the requirements of employee conduct are established
and regularly reviewed; requirements relating to employee conduct are
communicated and feedback is collected on whether expected behaviours are
being demonstrated; and employee conduct is monitored and reported.
1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

To provide assurance to the Corporate Governance and Audit committee that: the
requirements of employee conduct are established and regularly reviewed;
requirements relating to employee conduct are communicated and feedback is
collected on whether expected behaviours are being demonstrated; and employee
conduct is monitored and reported.

2.

Background information

2.1

An annual report to this committee has been received since 2015. The internal
controls are designed to mitigate a number of risks including breaches of
employment law which could result in claims to the employment tribunal,
reputational damage leading to poor employer brand and poor employment
practices leading to poor staff engagement and lower quality service delivery.

3.

Main issues

3.1

Conduct and discipline. All employees are required to work in accordance with the
employee code of conduct (available via Insite and covered on day one of induction)
and this is supported by a strong set of council values. The council’s disciplinary
policy exists to take action when an employee’s conduct falls below the expected
standards. The policy is ACAS compliant and managers are supported in taking
action by a skilled and professional HR team.

3.2

In 2019/20 137 disciplinary cases were concluded, this represents less than 1% of
the overall workforce and is broadly similar to levels of disciplinary cases in the last
3 years. The outcomes of these cases were as follows: 21 dismissals, 1 transfer as
alternative to dismissal, 25 final written warning, 9 written warning, 18 refer back to
management, 27 recommendations to management, 16 resignations, 9 employment
ceased and 11 no further action.

3.3

The principal audit manager and the HR Business Partner with the lead for
casework meet regularly (approximately every 2- 3 months) to identify any
disciplinary cases which may be reportable to the annual fraud and corruption
survey or require intervention by the audit team.

3.4

Due to COVID-19 there has been an impact on the organisation’s ability to resolve
disciplinary cases because normal face to face meetings have not been possible.
The council’s response has been in line with the guidance issued by ACAS and
discussions have been held with the trade unions about adopting a case by case
approach to select the best fit way of holding a formal meeting from a range of
options, supported by corporate and individual risk assessments.

3.5

Employment policies. Although a disciplinary policy is necessary it is the quality and
effective operation of other employment policies that ensures that the vast majority
of employees meet the expected standards of conduct at work.
Page 40

3.6

Between 2015 and 2017 the following employment policies were revised:
disciplinary, improving attendance, dignity at work, alcohol and drugs, grievance
resolution, improving performance and probationary.

3.7

In all of these policies there is an emphasis on managers taking early action to
avoid issues escalating unnecessarily and also on taking an individualised approach
to supporting their employees to be at work and be their best.

3.8

In 2019 the new recruitment policy statement and toolkit was agreed with the Trade
Unions which makes the process more inclusive and creates a flexible set of values
based methods for recruiting.

3.9

The supporting staff at work charter with accompanying reasonable adjustment and
working carers passports are due to be introduced in Autumn 2020.

3.10 As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, a Flexible Resourcing Plan was developed
with the trade unions in March 2020 to support workforce agility and deployment.
3.11 Workforce implications of meeting the financial challenges. In line with our values all
employees have been made aware of the significant financial challenges and the
bulk of savings are expected to come from directorate service reviews. Executive
Board are reviewing all proposed service reviews and Full Council approves the
budget which is now supported by longer term planning through the medium term
financial strategy.
3.12 As required under the 1992 Trade Union and Labour Relations (consolidation) Act a
Section 188 notice has been issued and formal consultation with the Trade Unions
has commenced which includes identifying actions that will avoid, reduce and
mitigate the need for compulsory redundancies.
3.13 As approved by CLT and with oversight from the Deputy Leader of the Council, all
staff have been asked to consider whether they are interested in a range of
voluntary measures and it is anticipated this will result in a large number of
employees leaving the organisation by the 31st March 2021. In addition a smaller
number of employees are expected to remain in the organisation but take up other
voluntary measures which contribute to overall cost savings. These other voluntary
measures include reduction in hours, career breaks, the buying of additional annual
leave and flexible retirement. These actions are being considered at a directorate
and cross council level to ensure that the impact on service delivery is minimised
whilst achieving the savings needed. The process has been and continues to be
equality impact assessed.
3.14 The council has collectively agreed a Managing Staff Reductions policy which in
addition to detailing the range of measures to avoid redundancy also sets out the
process including notice periods, redundancy pay and the right of appeal against
selection for redundancy. As the current financial challenges are more significant
than the council has faced in the past an accompanying document setting out in
more detail how consultation and engagement with Trade Unions will be carried out
was agreed in August 2020.
3.15 Employee register of interests. New starters are required to declare any interests
when they commence employment and all employees are required to register any
interests as specified in the register of interests policy on an ongoing basis.
Examples of declarations include duties such as school governors and other
voluntary activities, employment outside the council and personal relationships with
contractors.

Page 41

3.16 In addition there is an annual exercise covering employees in high risk posts which
are identified using the following criteria: posts that give significant advice or
speaking for the council; posts where there is significant authority to make
decisions; and posts with significant discretion over spending. In 2020 1,362
employees were identified as “high risk”. The annual exercise is usually completed
in May however due to Covid-19 it will be completed in September.
3.17 Directors and chief officers have a responsibility to assess declarations and take the
necessary actions to address any potential conflict of interest as detailed in the
toolkit guidance, “Assessing outside interests.” Advice is available from the HR
team. There have been no referrals to the HR casework team in 2019/20 for any
breach of the register of interests policy.
3.18 Gifts and Hospitality. All individual declarations are reviewed and either approved or
rejected by a Director or their nominee. The declarations are logged on a central
register at the Business Support Centre.
3.19 On an annual basis Directors are sent a copy of the register for their directorate and
they are responsible for reviewing this to ensure that they are satisfied that there
are no concerns, either with what individual officers have declared over the year or
with any particular firm making inappropriate offers. No such concerns were
identified in the last annual review and there have been no referrals in 2019/20 to
the HR casework team for any breach of the gifts and hospitality policy.
3.20 In 2019 a benchmarking exercise on the gifts and hospitality policy was undertaken
with the core cities which confirms that our arrangements are broadly similar to
other local authorities.
3.21 Following recommendations from last year’s committee the gifts and hospitality
policy was updated in November 2019. From January 2020 Directors were required
to gain approval from the Chief Executive and in turn the Chief Executive gains
approval from the Leader/ Deputy Leader for any gifts and hospitality. The second
recommendation related to introducing a process whereby the annual review of gifts
and hospitality requires ‘nil returns’ to be submitted. Those employees in identified
“high risk” posts are now required to actively confirm that they have complied with
the gifts and hospitality policy at the same time that they complete their annual
return for the register of interests.
3.22 Politically Restricted Posts. In order to comply with The Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 the council has a politically restricted posts policy and this was
reviewed in 2019 by a member of the legal services team which resulted in no
recommended changes. The identification of posts is built into the guidance notes
accompanying the creation of new posts and also the redesignation of existing
posts. Requirements of the policy are communicated to employees via their contract
of employment documentation. There have been no referrals in 2019/20 to the HR
casework team for any breach of the politically restricted posts policy and
procedure.
3.23 Appraisals. Our values and behaviours clearly set out expectations for all
employees. Arrangements are in place to assess the performance of employees
against expected behaviours through the two formal appraisals each year, a ‘full
year’ appraisal (1 April to 30 June) and an ‘interim appraisal’ (1 October to 31
December).
3.24 Due to the need to respond to COVID-19 the decision was taken in consultation
with CLT to suspend the full year appraisal cycle for 2019/20. Regular manager and
Page 42

employee communication including discussion of job performance and amended
responsibilities has continued through 121s and where required individual risk
assessments.
3.25 Employee Engagement Survey. Further to consultation with services, staff
networks, trade unions and feedback from Scrutiny Board (Strategy and Resources)
it was agreed by CLT in March 2019 that the survey would be refreshed to reduce
the number of questions asked and to conduct it once every two years rather than
annually. It is therefore due to be conducted again in 2021.
3.26 In 2020 due to the need to gather feedback from staff in response to COVID-19 two
wellbeing pulse surveys have been run, each one completed by over 4000
employees and a more in depth working from home survey was held which was
completed by 5,400 employees, 57% of the eligible workforce. These surveys have
ensured that the views of staff are gathered, that support for their wellbeing has
been put in place and that CLT have received information from employees to assist
in the planning for future service provision and delivery. Over 80% of the
respondents have reported feeling happy with the level of support they are
receiving. For those who were unhappy if they chose to leave their contact details
then they have received an individual phone call from a member of the HR team to
offer further support.
3.27 Oversight and monitoring. CLT receive regular reports on a variety of workforce
related matters, examples in 2019/20 include the newly developed People Strategy
2020- 2025, the talent management strategy and the inclusion and diversity plan.
3.28 Councillor Lewis as Deputy Leader and Executive member for Resources meets
weekly with members of the HR leadership team on the full range of employment
related activities.
3.29 At the strategy and resources scrutiny board workforce information is monitored
through key performance indicators such as employee absence rates, number of
apprenticeships and details of workforce protected characteristics. The board
receives the information twice a year, normally in January and June although the
June 2020 board was suspended due to Covid-19 and therefore the next report is
due in January 2021.
3.30 Health and safety compliance is monitored through monthly meetings between the
Head of Health and Safety and the Director of Resources and Housing and through
a quarterly health, safety and wellbeing priority board with Chief Officers. In addition
health and safety matters are reported to CLT twice a year and Executive Board
receive an annual report.
4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 Employment policies are developed and reviewed by the HR team in consultation
with trade union colleagues and staff networks with additional advice where
applicable being provided by legal services. The views of and feedback from
managers is also collected via focus groups. Development of new/ reviews of
existing policies form part of the weekly meetings with Councillor Lewis.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

Page 43

4.2.1 All reviews of employment policies include Equality Impact Assessments. These
ensure equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is considered throughout the
development, implementation and review or establishment of any key decisions,
strategies, policies, services and functions.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 There are a number of workforce matters reflected in the Best Council KPIs and the
new People Strategy 2020 – 2025 has introduced the ambition to the Best Place to
Work which can only be achieved through modern and effective employment
practices.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 Consideration of the climate emergency goals is integrated throughout the
development, implementation and review or establishment of any key decisions,
strategies, policies, services and functions.
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 Effective management of our workforce has a positive impact on our overall salary
costs. Our policy review process includes working pro actively with our Trade Union
colleagues to ensure that our employment policies are in line with our values and
are easy to understand for employees and managers so that our workforce is
managed and supported effectively.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 All employment policies are legally compliant and the human resources team
receive direct updates from ACAS that allow policies to be reviewed to ensure they
keep up with legislative changes as well as best practice advice.
4.5.2 This report is not subject to call in.
4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 As an employer there is legal responsibility to ensure that certain employment
policies are in place and as a good employer Leeds City Council wants to achieve a
culture where all employees are clear on their responsibilities and can be their best.
4.6.2 If employment policies are not effectively implemented then there is a risk of
employees taking legal action against the Council through Employment Tribunal
claims. ACAS early conciliation and employment tribunal cases are monitored
through monthly meetings between the Deputy Chief Officer HR, the HR casework
team manager and legal services. These internal controls help protect against
reputational damage which could lead to a poor employer brand making it harder to
attract and retain the best employees. From April 2019 all formal casework has
been logged via SAP which has resulted in better quality reporting allowing trends
to be spotted and action to be taken.
5.
5.1

Conclusions
From the review, assessment and on-going monitoring carried out, the Chief
Officer HR has reached the opinion that, employee conduct is properly managed,
Page 44

employment policies are regularly reviewed and employee conduct forms part of
normal manager/ employee relations. In particular:
a. In relation to the requirements of employee conduct being established and
regularly reviewed:
 The Code of Conduct is accessible to employees and fit for purpose.
 Politically restricted posts have been matched to the specified and sensitive
criteria.
 There is a programme of review for employment policies to ensure they are
fit for purpose.
b. In relation to the requirements of employee conduct being communicated
and feedback being collected on whether expected behaviours are being
demonstrated:


Directors review annually the declarations of gifts and hospitality that
have been made. There is an annual programme for employees in
identified high risk posts to actively confirm their compliance with the
policy.



There is an annual programme for the completion of register of interests
for employees in identified high risk posts and declarations are
reviewed by Directors.

c. In relation to the requirement that employee conduct is monitored and
reported:


5.2

6

Where appropriate employees are referred for investigation under the
disciplinary policy and there is effective monitoring of cases using the
SAP system to produce quarterly reports for the HR leadership team.

There have been no referrals to the HR casework team in 2019/20 for any breach of
the politically restricted posts policy, the gifts and hospitality policy or the register of
interests policy.
Recommendations
Members are requested to consider and note the positive assurances provided in
this report in relation to: the requirements of employee conduct are established
and regularly reviewed; requirements relating to employee conduct are
communicated and feedback is collected on whether expected behaviours are
being demonstrated; and employee conduct is monitored and reported:

7

Background documents1

7.2

None

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Note of Working Group
Monday 7th September 2020

Annual Assurance Report on Employment Policies and Procedures
and Employee Conduct
The HR Service Manager presented the report of the chief Officer Human
Resources.
The Committee were advised that the new people Strategy 2020-25 has introduced
the new ambition to be the Best Place to Work.
The Committee received assurance that the Council’s disciplinary policy is ACAS
compliant.
The Committee were informed that the supporting staff at work charter and
accompanying reasonable adjustment and carers passports have been agreed and
will be launched shortly.
The report highlights workforce implications of meeting the Council’s financial
challenges, Members were assured that services are being supported in the staffing
implications, with the current focus relating to voluntary measures.
Members were advised that Covid-19 has had a number of implications including:




Disciplinary hearings have been delayed;
Returns in relation to the annual exercise for register of interests and gifts and
hospitality will be delayed until September 2020;
Alternative survey methods have been used to obtain staff feedback.

Members were directed to the new section in the report giving details in relation to
both officer and democratic oversight and monitoring.
Members of the Committee asked questions and received responses as follows:
Q: Given that the gifts and hospitality process has been amended on the basis of the
Committee’s discussion on the last annual assurance report can confirmation be
provided that high risk officers have complied.
A:.The HR Service Manager, explained that completion of the exercise had been
delayed to September as a result of the COvid-19 pandemic, and undertook to
update the committee as to progress at the formal meeting of Committee on 21st
September 2020.
Q: With reference to paragraph 3.2 could a breakdown of disciplinary cases be
provided.
A: Information was not available to hand. However, since the working group took
place officers have confirmed that the outcomes of these cases were as follows:




21 dismissals,
1 transfer as alternative to dismissal,
25 final written warning,

Page 47








9 written warning,
18 refer back to management,
27 recommendations to management,
16 resignations,
9 employment ceased and
11 no further action.

Q: With reference to paragraph 3.12 could officers provide additional information in
relation to “other voluntary measures” to provide savings.
A: These other voluntary measures include reduction in hours, career breaks, the
buying of additional annual leave and flexible retirement.
Q: With reference to paragraph 4.6.2 could officers provide a breakdown of
Employment Tribunal claims.
A: Information was not available to hand. However, since the working group took
place officers have confirmed that between 1st April 2019 and 31st March 2020 there
were 8 Employment Tribunal claims received and the types and outcomes are as
follows:









Disability Discrimination. Withdrawn by claimant.
Race Discrimination. Withdrawn by claimant.
ET multi. Went to a hearing and LCC succeeded.
Unfair dismissal Dismissed against the claimant.
Unfair dismissal. Withdrawn by claimant.
Unfair dismissal settled following judicial mediation.
ET multiple claim. Current.
ET Other . Current.

It is recommended by the working group that
1. The Committee approves the recommendations set out in the report.

Page 48

Agenda Item 10
Report author: Kelsey Campbell
Tel: 0113 378 5855

Report of Director of Resources and Housing
Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 21st September 2020
Subject: Applications Portfolio Programme – Update on Access project
Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Is the decision eligible for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues
To provide Corporate Governance and Audit Committee an update on the progress made
on eradicating Microsoft (MS) Access 2003 from the network to enable us to maintain our
current PSN Compliance Certificate.
Recommendations
1.1

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to consider the contents of
this report and support the actions therein.

Page 49

1. Purpose of this report
1.1 To provide Corporate Governance and Audit Committee with an update on progress
with the Access 2003 replacement project.
2. Background information
2.1 The Public Services Network (PSN) was set up as an assured route for information
sharing by central government across public sector organisations. It provides a
compliance regime to assure a good level of information security arrangements are in
place. The Council has worked hard over the last number of years to achieve and
maintain compliance as security risks evolve. On 20th August 2019 the Cabinet Office
re-instated the Council’s PSN certificate. The council network is now being actively
monitored for vulnerabilities and patched appropriately.
2.2 MS Access 2003 is no longer supported by Microsoft and therefore could introduce a
cyber security risk. A decision was made to completely move away from Microsoft
Access and for compliance purposes we eradicated Access 2003 first as part of phase
one and long term plans for phase two are being finalised in order for the council to
move away from historic Access use and ensure processes are covered by appropriate
solutions.
2.3 MS Access is a tool that is heavily relied upon in services and underpins important
business processes, for example in Finance, Children’s and Highways.
3. Main issues
3.1 Members will recall the high level project plan milestones reported in previous
meetings. Progress against these milestones is set out for ease of reference at Annex
1 to this report.
3.2 Since the last meeting work has focused on the following issues:
Conversions from MS Access 2003 to MS Access 2010
3.3 Excellent progress has been made in the last reporting period on uplifts to Access
2010, amidst issues the pandemic continues to pose. On the writing of this report, there
are currently two databases awaiting final uplift by developers in DIS. The rest are with
the business to complete final rollout (see Annex 1 for a further breakdown of the latest
statistics).


Current secondments and resource assignments to the conversion work stream are
due to be ended on 31/08/2020, meaning developers will return to substantive posts
and outstanding work to be completed by the applications teams will be finalised.



The project have consolidated all remaining ‘access’ (e.g. licenses and runtime) into
one group and final ‘full’ licenses and runtime instances will be removed from DIS
staff members once Business as Usual arrangements are agreed and in place.

Page 50

Stop creation of new MS Access 2003 or 2010 databases
3.4 Service areas are fully aware they are unable to create new databases and the project
closely monitors this and report statistics on this at future meetings. As we’ve continued
to remove access for people, teams are flagging other databases to us that aren’t
technically in use, but need data migrating in order to remove their reliance on Access.
This has added to the team’s workload in recent weeks, but is being managed.
Replacement of Access 2010 databases
3.5 The long term replacement work of the converted databases and MS Access 2010 is
currently being scoped out and planned in. The project have agreed with the Cabinet
Office to deliver replacements for Access over a three to five year period. Any security
risks will be mitigated for through our usual measures whilst we work to completely
remove the council’s reliance on Access. The next steps and analysis are underway
and project plans are in hand.
3.6 Some of the tasks are already underway including the analysis, planning and the
assessment and categorisation of the 2010 data. This will enable us to scope out how
many databases need replacing in phase two of the project.
3.7 Appropriate governance arrangements are already in place and DIS has implemented
a new Portfolio Management Office (PMO) to assist with the management and
organisation of projects, including resource allocation and board/governance
arrangements. All projects in DIS will report resource commitments and project
progress via the PMO and the project will continue to attend regular board meetings to
discuss progress, actions, risks and issues. The PMO implementation has also brought
a formalised and robust method of requesting additional resources, should they be
needed during a project life cycle.
3.8 The current Senior Responsible Officer will remain in place and the Access board will
make up part of the new Compliance board under the PMO. Any escalations will go
through the current channels, to the SRO and board level where needed.
PSN Compliance
3.9 There have been conversations taking place with Cabinet Office in the last few months
and they are comfortable with the approach the project is taking and have agreed the
plan for Access 2010 delivery. The Cabinet Office have responded to us in writing and
this can be made available to the committee under separate cover, if required.
3.10 All DIS projects and programmes which have an impact on compliance have all
been addressed in the Information Governance annual report, which was provided to
committee in March 2020 and the Access project will report back in the same manner,
alongside all projects/programmes which have an impact on compliance.
4. Corporate considerations
4.1.

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 Significant consultation and engagement has taken place with all service areas and
continual challenge must be maintained.
4.2.

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

Page 51

4.2.1 There are no issues in relation to Equality and Diversity or Cohesion and
Integration.
4.3.

Council policies and best council plan

4.3.1 The Access replacement are part of the Council’s wider compliance programmes
for General Data Protection Regulations, Public Services Network Information
Assurance, Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards and Data Security and
Protection Toolkit.
4.4.

Resources and value for money

4.4.1 Analysis by DIS shows that the essential requirements of many of the databases
can be met by Council solutions such as SharePoint lists or corporate case
management solutions. This means services accepting the corporate solutions
offered and adapting business processes whilst having solutions that meet the
primary requirement of the original database.
4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in
4.5.1 Delegated authority sits with the Director of Resources and Housing and Senior
Information Risk Owner and has been sub-delegated to the Chief Digital and
Information Officer under the heading “Knowledge and information management” in
the Director of Resources and Housing Sub-Delegation Scheme.
4.5.2 There are no restrictions on access to information contained in this report.
4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 Microsoft Access 2003 Risks
There is a risk some remediation work will be required during September and
October 2020, due to technical issues that arise post rollout of upgraded databases,
or any redundant databases that service users can no longer access.
Mitigation: The project have already planned for closure work and two developers
will remain with the project full time, until all tasks and final communications are
complete.
4.6.2 Microsoft Access 2010 Risks
Dependencies on service areas to work with the project in the timescales we
need them to.
Mitigation: Services have been directed by CLT to prioritise this work, and other
compliance work, over other work. This message will need to be reiterated once
Access 2010 analysis begins and the project will pick up on this communication.
The risk of not getting the right technical resource recruited for this project.

Page 52

Mitigation: All avenues to recruit the necessary skills and capabilities are being
employed. The new PMO will also assist with assigning the correct skills to the
resource pool.
5.

Conclusions

5.1

The Director of Resources and Housing and the Chief Digital and Information
Officer continue to ensure this project is prioritised, this has been readdressed
given the current situation and is still a priority project. CLT have been informed and
are provided with regular updates, with escalation routes established. Risks are
been managed, with remediation monitored by the Access Project Board.

6.

Recommendations

6.1

Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to consider the contents of
this report and support the actions therein.

7.

Background documents1
N/A

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.
1

Page 53

ANNEX 1 MS Access conversion statistics per Directorate.

Key descriptions:
New (Not yet started) – Work has not begun on a database yet and is awaiting the
developer to begin assessing and converting.
In progress – Work has begun on converting the database and the database is currently
with the developer to complete.
Waiting on Business – This status is used for the project team developers to track whether
we are awaiting answers from business areas about functionality of the database, whether
it is still required (due to infrequent use) or discussing dates for hand over of the database
with the up to date version of runtime.
On test – In user testing and awaiting feedback from user about whether database can be
signed off as successfully converted or if errors have occurred and further development is
needed.
Awaiting go-live – Access 2010 database is ready to go-live and Access 2003 database
can be removed. Agreeing a swap over date with the business.

Page 54

Agenda Item 11
Report author: Louise Booth
Tel: 88684

Report of the Chief Officer (Financial Services)
Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 21 September 2020
Subject: Internal Audit Update Report June to August 2020
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary
1. Main issues


This report provides assurance that the internal control environment is operating as
intended through a summary of the Internal Audit activity for the period from June to
August 2020 and highlights the incidence of any significant control failings or
weaknesses.

2. Best Council Plan Implications


The work of Internal Audit contributes to Leeds City Council achieving its key
priorities by helping to promote a secure and robust internal control environment,
which enables a focus on accomplishing the Best Council Plan objectives.

Page 55

3. Resource Implications


4.

A risk-based approach has been used to devise an Internal Audit plan that
promotes the effective and efficient use of resources across the organisation.
Recommendations



The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to
a)

receive the Internal Audit Update Report covering the period from June to
August 2020 and note the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the
period covered by the report;

b)

note that there have been no limitations in scope and nothing has arisen to
compromise the independence of Internal Audit during the reporting period;

Page 56

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the Internal Audit activity
for the period June to August 2020 and highlight the incidence of any significant
control failings or weaknesses.

2.

Background information

2.1

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee has responsibility for reviewing
the adequacy of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, including
matters such as internal control and risk management. The Committee also
considers the Council’s arrangements relating to internal audit requirements,
including monitoring the performance of Internal Audit.

2.2

The reports issued by Internal Audit are a key source of assurance providing the
Committee with some evidence that the internal control environment is operating
as intended.

2.3

The reports issued by Internal Audit are directed by the Internal Audit Annual
Plan. This has been developed in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) and has been reviewed and approved by the Committee.

2.4

Depending on the type of audit review undertaken, an assurance opinion may be
assigned for the control environment, compliance and organisational impact. The
control environment opinion is the result of an assessment of the controls in
place to mitigate the risk of the objectives of the system under review not being
achieved. A compliance opinion provides assurance on the extent to which the
controls are being complied with. Assurance opinion levels for the control
environment and compliance are categorised as follows: substantial (highest
level); good; acceptable; limited and no assurance.

2.5

Organisational impact is reported as either: major, moderate or minor. Any
reports issued with a major organisational impact will be reported to the
Corporate Leadership Team along with the relevant directorate’s agreed action
plan.

2.6

Our protocols specify that we undertake a follow up review where we have
previously reported ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance for the audited area. Our audit
reports include an assurance opinion for each objective reviewed within the
audited area. Follow up audits are undertaken for those areas where a specific
objective within the review resulted in limited or no assurance in addition to those
where the limited or no assurance opinion was provided for the review overall.

Page 57

3.

Main issues
Audit Reports Issued

3.1

The title of the audit reports, relating to reviews carried out under the 2019/20
and 2020/21 Internal Audit Annual Plans, and issued between June and August
2020 and level of assurance provided for each review is detailed in table 1 below.
Table 1: Summary of Reports Issued June to August 2020
Audit Opinion
Report Title

Control
Environment
Assurance

Compliance
Assurance

Organisational
Impact

Central Purchasing Card Controls

Substantial

Substantial

Minor

Creditors

Substantial

Good

Minor

IR35 Legislation – Cenral Controls and
Directorate Reviews

Acceptable

Limited

Moderate

Faster Payments Scheme

Acceptable

Acceptable

Minor

Leeds Town Hall Roof Contract Review

Good

N/A

Minor

Procurement of Plastic Wheeled Bins

Good

N/A

Minor

Key Financial Systems

Resources and Housing

Procurement and Contracts

City Development
External Advertising Income – Follow Up

Good

N/A

Minor

Good

Good

Minor

Limited

Acceptable

Moderate

Adults and Health
Short Break Service
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
follow up
Schools
School Follow Up 1

Substantial

Good

N/A

School Follow Up 2

Substantial

Good

N/A

1 x SVF audit

N/A certification of account balances

Page 58

3.2

In addition to the reports detailed in table 1 above, the following letters of
assurance have been issued to the funding bodies during the reporting
period.These letters confirm that we are satisfied that the expenditure incurred is
in line with the specific funding requirements, provides evidence that grant terms
are met and reduces the risk of clawback.

3.3

The audit work undertaken in all grant claim reviews includes verification of the
figures being declared to the relevant funding bodies to the financial accounting
system, sample testing of expenditure to ensure that this is in accordance with
the grant determination letter, and on a sample basis that the relevant internal
approvals/decisions have been taken.


Cycle City Ambition Grant 1 (July 2020)



Cycle City Ambition Grant 2 (July 2020)



Local Public Transport Investment Programme (July 2020)



National Productivity Investment Fund (July 2020)



Pothole Action Fund (July 2020)



Local Transport Capital Block Funding (July 2020)



West Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund (July 2020)



Blue Badge Grant (July 2020)

2019/20 Internal Audit Plan
3.4

During the reporting period, there have been no limitations in scope and nothing
has arisen to compromise our independence. We have finalised 12 audit reviews
(excluding data analytics, work for external clients and fraud and irregularity
work) and we have not identified any issues that would necessitate direct
intervention by the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

3.5

Each of the audits that have been completed in respect of the Council’s key
financial systems have received substantial or good assurance opinions. This
provides the Committee with assurance that these systems are well established
and operating as intended.
Limited or No Assurance Opinions
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) follow up

3.6

A follow up review was undertaken of the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
(DoLS). The key findings of the previous review were that the control
environment is not configured in a way to meet the timescales required by the
DoLS legislation and that there is limited performance monitoring in relation to
DoLS. Limited assurance has again been provided for these areas as these
recommendations have not been actioned in line with the agreed timescales and
remain outstanding.

Page 59

3.7

The service area has advised that progress against some of the
recommendations had been delayed due to the pending implementation of
Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) by the Government which will be replacing
DoLS. However, this has again been delayed and the service has recognised
that improvements are required to be made in the existing processes to ensure
that DoLS requests are processed efficiently.

3.8

Management has responded positively to the follow up audit and will provide
updates to their Directorate Leadership Team on the implementation of the audit
recommendations. We will undertake a further follow up review during 2021/22 to
assess the progress made in this area.
IR35 Legislation – Central Controls and Directorate Reviews.

3.9

In March 2018 we carried out an audit to review compliance with the IR35
taxation legislation, and reported that limited assurance could be given for the
control environment and the compliance with these controls. We found that
engaging officers lacked knowledge and understanding of their responsibilities in
relation to IR35, meaning the necessary checks on employment status were not
being undertaken.

3.10

We carried out a follow up review to ensure the recommendations from this
previous report had been implemented. This follow up included a full programme
of testing across the directorates. We found that improvements have been made
with the controls in place to process new creditors through BSC, however there
continue to be compliance issues with creditors being set up within the
directorates. Further recommendations have been made to create a mandatory
training package for those creating new creditors, with central champions to
support the process. Directorate memos have also been issued to notify directors
of the issues with compliance within their areas.
Follow Up Reviews

3.11

We have finalised three follow up reviews during the reporting period:
School follow ups

3.12

The original audits at both schools identified weaknesses in the operation of the
school voluntary fund, and in compliance with purchasing procedures at one of
the schools. The follow up audits confirmed that significant progress had been
made implementing the recommendations, and that financial management in
these areas at both schools had improved.
External Advertising Income follow up

3.13

The initial audit identified that the control arrangements were not configured in a
manner that ensured that all income due to the council was being identified and
collected. The follow up audit confirmed that substantial progress had been made
in addressing the recommendations. This includes action taken to improve the
contract management arrangements to maximise income due to the council.
Income received is now being monitored regularly which should identify if this
was not in line with expectations.

Page 60

Counter Fraud and Corruption
3.14

The counter fraud and corruption assurance block within the Internal Audit Plan
includes both the reactive and proactive approaches to the Council’s zero
tolerance to fraud and corruption.
Proactive Anti-Fraud Work

3.15

As previously reported we take part in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI). The NFI
is an exercise conducted by the Cabinet Office every two years that matches
electronic data within and between public and private sector bodies to prevent
and detect fraud. The work for the 2018/19 exercise has now concluded and
preparatory work is underway for the next exercise. Data is due to be submitted
in autumn.

3.16

To help ensure that there is an effective counter fraud culture in place within
Leeds City Council, we have included time in the counter fraud block to
undertake proactive fraud reviews. These reviews consider areas identified
through various methods, including the use of best practice publications and our
internal risk assessments. We have continued to support the Business Rates
team on the small business and retail, hospitality and leisure grants. This has
included the completion of government required risk assessments for both
schemes, and the development of a post payment assurance plan. The post
payment assurance plan has been established from a number of different
sources, including government guidance, intelligence on known national frauds
and local risk factors. There are a number of workstreams within the post
payment plan, which has included the submission of data through the National
Fraud Initiative to verify the legitimacy of a number of bank accounts. The post
payment assurance plan is directing our investigative work, and utilises various
data streams to inform further investigative work. We are liaising with colleagues,
partners and relevant external bodies where the legitimacy of grant payments is
unclear.
Reactive Anti-Fraud Work

3.17

During the reporting period we have received 25 potential irregularity referrals. All
reported irregularities were risk assessed by Internal Audit and are either being
investigated by ourselves, the relevant directorate or HR colleagues, as
appropriate.

3.18

During the reporting period 9 referrals have been closed. There are 30 referrals
that are currently open and being investigated. Two of the referrals remain under
investigation by police. We have reported the work we have undertaken with the
service area involved and will provide a detailed update to the committee once
the police investigations have been concluded.

Page 61

3.19

An analysis of the 30 open referrals is as follows:All have been risk assessed;
20 have been allocated to the directorates for investigation and 10 are with
Internal Audit.
8 were raised through Whistleblowing and 11 through the Raising Concerns
Policies. The remaining 11 were raised through other routes, for example by
directorate officers, or external bodies for example the DWP/HMRC.
Other Internal Audit Work

3.20

Various strands of work are ongoing within Internal Audit to support the council’s
Core Business Transformation Programme, which seeks to achieve the council’s
ambitions through a combination of modern integrated technological solutions
and a co-ordinated programme of transformation and continuous improvement.
To date our involvement has included the provision of advice and oversight in
respect of individual service level reviews, as well as various elements of project
support and governance advice in relation to the progression of technological
and systems based solutions concentrated within Financial Services. Working
collaboratively with services to support major transformational projects enables
us to impart advice and expertise on risk management and governance. This also
demonstrates the adaptability of the team in supporting the ongoing achievement
of the council’s ambitions alongside our programme of assurance work.

Page 62

Internal Audit Performance
3.21

We actively monitor our performance in a number of areas and encourage
feedback. A customer satisfaction questionnaire (CSQ) is issued with every audit
report. The questionnaires ask for the auditee’s opinion on a range of issues and
asks for an assessment ranging from 5 (for excellent) to 1 (for poor). The results
are presented as an average of the scores received for each question.

3.22

The results of the questionnaires are reported to the Audit Leadership Team and
used to determine areas for improvement and inform the continuing personal
development training programme for Internal Audit staff.

3.23

For the period from 1 June 2020 to 31 August 2020 we have issued a total of 13
Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires and received 10 completed returns at a
response rate of 77% in the period. A summary of the scores is presented in
table 2. A full analysis of the 2019/20 data will be presented with the Annual
Report, scheduled for October 2020.
Table 2: Results from Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires for the period 1 June
2020 to 31 August 2020.

Question

Average Score
(out of 5)

Sufficient notice was given

5.0

Level of consultation on scope

5.0

Auditor’s understanding of systems

4.6

Audit was undertaken efficiently

4.8

Level of consultation during the audit

4.8

Audit carried out professionally and objectively

5.0

Accuracy of draft report

4.8

Opportunity to comment on audit findings

4.9

Clarity and conciseness of final report

4.8

Prompt issue of final report

4.7

Audit recommendations will improve control

4.44

The audit was constructive and added value

4.4

4.77

Overall Average Score

Page 63

3.24

A summarised version of the 2019/20 and 2020/21 Audit Plans are appended to
provide members with an overview of the objective of each review and the
current status. The 2019/20 plan does not show a complete list, merely those
reviews where there has been audit activity during the period. These reviews are
anticipated to be completed for inclusion within the Head of Internal Audit Annual
Report and Opinion. This report will be presented to the Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee at the meeting in October 2020. As a result of resourcing
implications and risk prioritisation, not all audits that were included in the Internal
Audit Plan for 2019/20 may be completed by then. The outstanding audits have
either been included in next year’s audit plan or considered for future audit
coverage as a result of our ongoing risk assessment.

3.25

The June Committee approved the reprioritised 2020/21 Audit Plan. There have
been no amendaments to this plan during the period.

3.26

We continue to manage our available resources to direct these towards the
highest areas of risk to ensure that an evidence based Head of Internal Audit
opinion can be provided on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control in
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1

This report did not highlight any consultation and engagement considerations.

4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1

This report does not highlight any issues regarding equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration.

4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
require the Committee to review the adequacy of the Council’s corporate
governance arrangements. This report forms part of the suite of assurances that
provides this evidence to the Committee.

4.3.2

The Internal Audit Plan has links to risks that may affect the achievement of Best
Council Plan objectives and the aims of council policies.
Climate Emergency

4.3.3

Internal Audit will consider the Climate Emergency in the development of Annual
Internal Audit Plans and in the scope of all relevant audits.

4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1

The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of reviews that evaluate the
effectiveness of financial governance, risk management and internal control
arrangements, including coverage of procurement activity.

Page 64

4.4.2

The Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and service
development work that is reported to the Committee demonstrates a commitment
to continuous improvement in respect of efficiency and effectiveness.

4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1

None.

4.6

Risk management

4.6.1

The Internal Audit Plan has been and will continue to be subject to constant
review throughout the financial year to ensure that audit resources are prioritised
and directed towards the areas of highest risk. This process incorporates a
review of information from a number of sources, one of these being the corporate
risk register.

4.6.2

The risks relating to the achievement of the Internal Audit Plan are managed
through ongoing monitoring of performance and resource levels. This information
is reported to the Committee.

Page 65

5.

Conclusions

5.1

There are no issues identified by Internal Audit in the June to August 2020
Internal Audit Update Report that would necessitate direct intervention by the
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.

6.

Recommendations

6.1

The Corporate Governance and Audit Committee is asked to :
a) receive the Internal Audit Update Report covering the period from June to
August 2020 and note the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the
period covered by the report;
b) note that there have been no limitations in scope and nothing has arisen to
compromise the independence of Internal Audit during the reporting period;

7.

Background documents

7.1

None.

Page 66

Appendix A – Status of the Ongoing Audits from the 2019/20 Audit Plan and Follow Up Reviews
Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
arising during the year

Independent examination of accounts and / or assurance that the grant claim has been spent in
accordance with the grant determination.

Reported November
2019, January 2020,
March 2020 and
September 2020

ICT and Information Governance

Page 67

Community Cloud

To provide assurance that the Community Cloud project is being managed to deliver its
intended outcomes.

In progress

Information Asset Registers

To provide assurance that the Council is aware of all data that it holds so that it can be
managed and secured in line with legislation.

In progress

To provide assurance over the integrity of central payroll functions, including the accuracy of
payments made and the authorisation and processing of new starters and leavers.

In progress

Key Financial Systems
Payroll Central Controls

Procurement
Contract Management

Individual reviews of contract management arrangements on a sample of contracts to gain
assurance that they are being managed to deliver their intended outcomes, incorporating a
review of contract extensions and open book review where necessary.

Contract Specification and Management
Follow Up

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the previous audit, as
reported to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at the November 2018 meeting.

Reported January
2020 and ongoing

In progress

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Directorate Risks - Adult Social Care and Health

Page 68

Payments to Providers of Homecare Follow
Up

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the previous audit, reported
to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at the January 2018 meeting.

In progress

Deprivation of Liberties Follow Up

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the previous audit, reported
to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at the March 2018 meeting.

Reported September
2020

Short Break Service

To review the new process to ensure that service users are receiving the right tier of support, it
has been properly authorised, providers have been paid and that the outcomes are managed /
monitored.

Reported September
2020

Income Recovery

To provide support to the directorate’s Income Recovery Project to gain assurance that all
income due is identified and there are appropriate processes in place to ensure that it is billed
and collected.

Attendance at Project
Board

Directorate Risks - Children and Families
Cluster Model and Area Inclusion
Partnerships (AIP)

A review of the arrangements in place to ensure that funding is spent effectively on intervention
and inclusion, in support of the intended outcomes of the Cluster Model and AIPs.

In progress

Funding for Inclusion

To provide assurance that the top up element of the funding is being correctly calculated in line
with formal criteria and then appropriately remitted to the school

In progress

Personal Education Plans

To ensure that there are quality personal education plans in place that are clear and consistent,
provide purposeful targets and are subject to regular review.

In progress

Budget Pressures

To gain assurance over the processes in place to manage the budget pressures within the
directorate.

Attendance at Looked
After Children’s’
Payments and
Placement Board

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Lettings Enforcement follow-up and new
system review

The review will follow up on the recommendations which remain outstanding since the
September 2018 follow-up review. Additional work will also be undertaken on the
implementation of the new system and the roll out of the revised lettings policy.

Adjustment to plan Major Adaptions being
brought forward
(20/21) due to COVID
19 implications. Now in
progress

Leeds Building Services Assurances

Time set aside to provide assurance that key risks relating to Leeds Building Services are
appropriately managed. Outline of specific assurance to be confirmed. To include gaining
assurance that the recommendations made across previous audits are being tracked and
implemented.

Council Housing Growth

To review the procurement strategy and provide assurance over the achievement of intended
outcomes.

Directorate Risks – Housing

In progress

Page 69

Planned

Other Directorate Risks
IR 35 Legislation Follow Up

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the recent audit as reported
to the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee at the June 2018 meeting

Reported September
2020

Funding from the Communities and
Environment directorate to the third sector

To review the arrangements in place to gain assurance that third sector / not for profit groups
are delivering their agreed services and objectives.

In progress

Flood Alleviation Scheme

To review the operational readiness of the Flood Alleviation Scheme

In progress

External Advertising Income – Follow Up

To review progress in implementing the recommendations made in the recent audit as reported
to the Corporate Governance and Audit Commit tee at the June 2018 meeting.

Reported September
2020

Appendix B – Status of Planned Audits from the 2020/21 Audit Plan and Follow Up Reviews
Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
Grants and Head of Audit Assurances
arising during the year

Independent examination of accounts and / or assurance that the grant claim has been spent in
accordance with the grant determination.

Reported Septemebr
2020 and ongoing

Asset Management and Security

To provide assurance that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure assets are securely
and effectively managed.

In progress

Privileged User Access Follow Up

To review the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the 2019/20 audit.

Not planned for this
quarter

Data Protection Impact Assessment

To provide assurance that there are appropriate controls in place to ensure that Data Protection
Impact Assessments are completed where required.

Not planned for this
quarter

ICT Projects

To review the arrangements in place for the management of ICT projects.

ICT and Information Governance

Page 70

In progress

Key Financial Systems
Key Financial Systems

To provide assurance that appropriate internal controls are in place and opperating

Not planned for this
quarter

Procurement
Contract Management

Individual reviews of contract management arrangements on a sample of contracts to gain
assurance that they are being managed to deliver their intended outcomes, incorporating a
review of contract extensions and open book review where necessary.

In progress

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Social Value

To review the arrangements in place to ensure that social value outcomes are appropriately
considered and delivered through procurement.

Status / CGAC
Meeting
Not planned for this
quarter

Directorate Risks - Adult Social Care and Health

Page 71

Customer Information System (CIS)
Payments

To provide assurance that payments are only made in relation to people with an assessed need,
have been correctly processed and are net of any client contribution. The review will also
provide assurance on the adequacy of controls for identifying changes in circumstances. The
review will cover all payments made through CIS for Residential and Nursing Care, Direct
Payments and Homecare payments.

Financial Assessments

To provide assurance that all eligible customers in receipt of reviewable services have been
financially assessed as appropriate, that assessments have been correctly calculated and that
all income due has been collected.

Nursing and Residential Care Home
Payments

To provide assurance that the revised processes for paying residential and nursing care
providers are operating as intended.

Not planned for this
quarter

In progress

Not planned for this
quarter

Directorate Risks - Children and Families
One Adoption West Yorkshire – Decision
Making

To provide assurance that there are appropriate governance arrangements in place with regard
to decision making for the organisation and that outcomes of the decisions are appropriately
monitored and reported.

In progress

Children’s Centres – Little Owls Service

To provide assurance that there are arrangements in place to monitor performance against
expected outcomes for the service, including financial outcomes, and that action is taken where
issues are identified.

Not planned for this
quarter

Special Educational Needs Out of Area
Placements

To provide assurance that there are appropriate systems in place for assessing and approving
the need for making out of area placements, ensuring that payments are accurate and that
performance in relation to this is appropriately monitored.

In progress

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Schools
Schools Audits

Individual audits of LCC maintained schools undertaken on a risk basis and audits of year end
school voluntary fund accounts.

School Follow Up Audits

To follow up on limited assurance opinions issued within 2019/20.

In progress

Two complete and two
planned for Qtr 3

Directorate Risks – Housing

Page 72

Major Adaptations

To review the process in place to ensure major adaptations completed for both council and
private houses are appropriate, completed to the required quality and timescale, and provide
value for money.

In progress

Complaints Handling Process

A review of the processes in place for dealing with customer complaints, including ensuring root
causes are identified and action taken on lessons learned.

Not planned for this
quarter

Leaseholders

To review the process in place to manage leaseholder arrangements.

Not planned for this
quarter

Private Sector Regulation – Selective
Licensing

A review of the processes in place for ensuring that properties subject to selective licensing are
licenced and inspected as appropriate.

Not planned for this
quarter

Housing Disrepair

To assess the extent to which the Authority manages claims received in line with established
best practice, ensuring that appropriate consideration has been given to the council’s
responsibilities in line with the Fitness for Human Habitation Act.

Not planned for this
quarter

Fire Safety

To provide assurance over the controls in place to mitigate the risk of fire in Council properties.

BITMO Assurances

To provide support to Housing Partnerships in the management of the BITMO Assurance
Framework.

Not planned for this
quarter

Leeds Building Services Assurances

Time set aside to provide assurance that key risks relating to Leeds Building Services are
appropriately managed. Outline of specific assurance to be confirmed.

Not planned for this
quarter

In progress

Audit Area

Overview of Assurance

Status / CGAC
Meeting

Housing Leeds In-Year Follow Up Work and
Contingency

To undertake follow up work as required during the year and respond to emerging risks within
Housing Leeds.

Not planned for this
quarter

Application of HR Policies

To gain assurance that a sample of HR policies are consistently and properly applied across the
authority.

Not planned for this
quarter

Invest to Save – Benefits Realisation Follow
Up

To review the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the 2019/20 audit.

In progress

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Assurances

To review and provide assurance on the work being undertaken to ensure strategic planning
and prioritisation of the council’s resources.

Not planned for this
quarter

Service Review Programme

Time set aside to contribute to the ongoing review of service delivery arrangements being
undertaken through the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Not planned for this
quarter

High Value Stock Management

To review the processes in place to ensure the secure management of high value stock items.
Directorates and services to be sampled on a cyclical basis.

In progess

Waste Strategy

To gain assurance that governance arrangements are in place to support the implementation of
the Waste Strategy.

Not planned for this
quarter

Taxi Service

To gain assurance that licenses are issued correctly and complaints are investigated
appropriately. This includes reviewing compliance with the Suitability Policy to ensure drivers
licenses are approved in accordance with new criteria.

Not planned for this
quarter

Leeds Cultural Trust

To provide assurance on the governance arrangements in place for the Leeds Cultural Trust.

Not planned for this
quarter

Other Directorate Risks

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
Report author: Kate Sadler
Tel: (0113) 37 88663

Report of City Solicitor
Report to Corporate Governance and Audit Committee
Date: 21st September 2020
Subject: Work Programme
Yes

No

Has consultation been carried out?

Yes

No

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and
integration?

Yes

No

Will the decision be open for call-in?

Yes

No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

Yes

No

Are specific electoral wards affected?
If yes, name(s) of ward(s):

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:
Appendix number:

1.

Purpose of this report

1.1

The Purpose of this report is to notify Members of the Committee’s work programme
for the remainder of the Municipal Year. The work programme is attached at
Appendix 1.

2.

Background information

2.1

The work programme provides information about the future items for the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee agenda and when items will be presented.

3.

Main issues

3.1

Members are requested to consider the work programme attached at Appendix 1
and determine whether any additional items need to be added to the work
programme.
Members are asked to note the dates for meetings of the Committee (agreed in
March 2019) in the Municipal Year. Members will recall that these have been set
out in such a way as to enable the Committee to fulfil its functions and
responsibilities in a reasonable and proportionate way.

3.2

3.3

Members will note that at the request of Executive Board, an additional item has
been added to the work programme for December 2020 relating to the governance
arrangements to be put in place under the devolution deal for West Yorkshire.

Page 75

4.

Corporate considerations

4.1

Consultation and engagement

4.1.1 This report consults seeks Members views on the content of the work programme of
the Committee, so that it might meet the responsibilities set out in the committee’s
terms of reference.
4.2

Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration

4.2.1 There are no equality and diversity or cohesion and integration issues arising from
this report.
4.3

Council policies and the Best Council Plan

4.3.1 The work programme provides a balanced number of reports and assurances upon
which the committee can assess the adequacy of the council’s corporate
governance arrangements.
Climate Emergency
4.3.2 There are no implications associated with the climate change emergency
4.4

Resources, procurement and value for money

4.4.1 It is in the best interests of the Council to have sound control arrangements in place
to ensure effective use of resources, these should be regularly reviewed and
monitored as such the work programme directly contributes to this.
4.5

Legal implications, access to information, and call-in

4.5.1 This report is not an executive function and is not subject to call in.
4.6

Risk management

4.6.1 By the Committee being assured that effective controls are in place throughout the
Council the work programme promotes the management of risk at the Council.
5.

Conclusions

5.1

The work programme of the Committee should be reviewed regularly and be
updated appropriately in line with the risks currently facing the Council.

6.

Recommendations

6.1.1 Members are requested to consider the work programme and meeting dates at
Appendix 1 and determine whether any additional items need to be added to the
work programme.
7.

Background documents1

7.1

None

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works.
1

Page 76

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2020-21

Date
10:00am
Friday 16th October 2020

Agenda

Purpose

1

Internal audit annual report and opinion

To receive the report setting out the annual audit report and opinion of
the Head of Internal Audit. To receive assurance in relation to the
arrangements for RIPA.

2

Audited accounts & audit report

To receive the audit report of the external auditor

3

Annual Governance Statement

To receive and approve the Annual Governance Statement.

1

Annual Audit letter and External Audit update
report

To receive the annual audit letter and an update report from the
external auditor.
This is a regular item

2

Internal audit update report

To receive the update report from the Head of Internal Audit.
This is a regular item

3

Governance Arrangements for Devolution

At the request of Executive Board, to consider the proposed
governance arrangements on devolution.

4

Annual assurance report on corporate
business continuity arrangements

To receive the annual assurance report concerning the Council’s
business continuity arrangements.

5

Annual assurance report on corporate
performance management arrangements

To receive the annual assurance report concerning the Council’s
performance management arrangements.

6

Applications Portfolio Programme – Update
on Access Project

To receive an update report in relation to progress on the access
project.

1

External audit plan and update report

To receive the proposed external audit plan and update report from
the external auditor.

Nov

Page 77

10:00am
Monday 14th Dec 2020
(An informal Working Group
Meeting will take place at 10:00
a.m. on Monday 30th
November)

Jan
10:00am
Monday 8th Feb 2020

Date
(An informal Working Group
Meeting will take place at 10:00
a.m. on Monday 25th January)

Agenda
2

Internal audit update report

To receive the update report from the Head of Internal Audit. To
receive an update on the operation of RIPA arrangements.
This is a regular item

3

Annual customer contact and satisfaction
report
Annual information governance assurance
report

To receive the annual assurance report concerning customer contact
and satisfaction
To receive the annual assurance report on the council’s information
governance arrangements, including arrangements for discharge of the
Caldicott guardian role

5

Applications Portfolio Programme – Update
on Access Project

To receive an update report in relation to progress on the access
project.

1

External Audit update report

To receive the update report from the external auditor.
This is a regular item

2

Internal audit plan

To receive the annual report seeking views on the proposed internal
audit plan

3

Annual financial management report

To receive the annual assurance report concerning financial planning
and management arrangements at the council

4

Annual treasury management report

To receive the annual assurance report on treasury management
systems and processes

5

Applications Portfolio Programme – Update
on Access Project

To receive an update report in relation to progress on the access
project.

6

Draft Annual report of Committee to Council.

To receive a proposed draft annual report from the committee for
presentation by the Chair at Full Council

4

Page 78

10:00am
Monday 15th Mar 2020
(An informal Working Group
Meeting will take place at 10:00
a.m. on Monday 1st March)

Apr

Purpose

